
Gastonia Planning Commission 

Meeting Schedule  

June 8, 2023 

5:30 – UNTIL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
(City Hall – City Council Chambers) 

ITEM 1a: Role Call / Sound Check 

ITEM 1b:  Calls/Contacts to Planning Commission Members 

ITEM 1c:    Approval of April 6, 2023 Minutes 

ITEM 2: Public Hearing – Dallas Bessemer City Highway Townhomes (File #202200615) 

Subject hearing involves a rezoning request for approximately 32.45 acres from 
Gaston County TMU (Transitional Mixed Use) and RLD (Residential Low Density) 

to City of Gastonia PD-RRDD (Planned Development – Revised Residential 

Development District). The subject property is located on Dallas Bessemer City 

Highway, north of the Gastonia Technology Park. The property is owned by Charles 

E. Pasour and Kenneth and Pamela Avery.

 The Gastonia City Council will be holding a Public Hearing on the Annexation

and Rezoning request at the June 20th, 2023 meeting

Staff Presentation: Jason Pauling, AICP, Assistant Planning Director 

ITEM 3: Public Hearing – Crowders Creek Commons Townhomes (File #202300052) 

Subject hearing involves a request to rezone approximately 16.31 acres from C-3 

(General Business), I-2 (General Industrial), and I-2 CUP to PD-RRDD (Planned 

Development – Revised Residential Development District). The subject property is 

located on West Franklin Boulevard, adjacent to Patterson Circle and is owned by 

Dean Putnam and Martha Smith. 

Staff Presentation: Jason Pauling, AICP, Assistant Planning Director 

ITEM 4: Public Hearing – Armstrong Park Road (File #202300122) 

Subject hearing involves a request to amend the C-2 CD (Highway Commercial – 

Conditional District) zoning district (File 7321) for approximately 3.49 acres. The 

subject property is located at the intersection of W. Hudson Boulevard and Armstrong 

Park Road and is owned by Gaston County Family YMCA. 

Staff Presentation: Jason Pauling, AICP, Assistant Planning Director 

ITEM 5: Public Hearing – Unified Development Ordinance Amendment (File 

#202300141) 

Subject hearing involves a request to amend Chapter 10 Off-Street Parking and 

Loading to the Unified Development Ordinance to 1) revise the parking maximums 

within certain zones and building type, 2) allow the Administrator to evaluate and 

approve increases within particular zones, 3) establish Electric Vehicle Charging 

Station regulations for certain uses, 4) modify section numbers and cross-references 

within this chapter and the UDO, and 5) clarify, adjust, and/or remove criteria 

associated with parking standards. 



GASTONIA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
Gastonia Council Chamber – City Hall – Gastonia, NC 

ALL INTERESTED PERSONS WISHING TO COMMENT SHOULD APPEAR AT THE PUBLIC HEARING. 

INDIVIDUALS REQUIRING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS WHEN ATTENDING THIS MEETING AND/OR 

IF THIS INFORMATION IS NEEDED IN AN ALTERNATIVE FORMAT BECAUSE OF A DISABILITY, 

SHOULD CONTACT THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, LOCATED IN CITY HALL AT 181 S. 

SOUTH STREET, TELEPHONE: (704-866-6786), FAX: (704-836-0022) OR BY EMAIL: 

JUDYS@CITYOFGASTONIA.COM. THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT REQUESTS AT LEAST 72 

HOURS' NOTICE PRIOR TO THE MEETING TO MAKE THE APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS. 

ITEM 6: Public Hearing – Unified Development Ordinance Amendment (File 

#202300147) 

Subject hearing involves a request to amend Section 12.3 Prohibited Signs and 

Section 12.14 Sign Flexibility Options to the Unified Development Ordinance to 

allow roof signs as a sign type flexibility option in the UMU zoning district. 

Staff Presentation: Jason Thompson, AICP, Planning Director

ITEM 7: Public Hearing – Unified Development Ordinance Amendment (File 

#202300181) 

Subject hearing involves a request to amend Section 7.6.2 HD Historic District 

Overlay to the Unified Development Ordinance to revise the Civil Penalty guidelines 

regarding Certificates of Appropriateness from the Historic District Commission. 

Staff Presentation: Jason Thompson, AICP, Planning Director

ITEM 8:       OTHER BUSINESS 

ITEM 9:  ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING IMPORTANT DATES 

June 20th & July 18th – City Council Meeting – 6:00 p.m. 

August 3rd – Planning Commission Meeting – 5:30 p.m. 

Staff Presentation: Jason Thompson, AICP, Planning Director

 The Gastonia City Council will be holding a Public Hearing on the text 
amendment at the June 20th, 2023 meeting

 The Gastonia City Council will be holding a Public Hearing on the text 
amendment at the June 20th, 2023 meeting

 The Gastonia City Council will be holding a Public Hearing on the text 
amendment at the June 20th, 2023 meeting



Gastonia Planning Commission 

April 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
The Gastonia Planning Commission meeting opened at 5:32 p.m. on Thursday, April 6, 2023 in the 

Council Chambers at City Hall, 181 S. South Street of Gastonia, NC.  

Present: Chair Kristie Ferguson and Commissioners Jim Stewart, Carl Harris, David Wilson, and 

Rodney Armstrong 

Absent: Commissioner Chad Ghorley, Anthony Gallant, Glenn Silverman 

Staff Members Present: Charles Graham, Jason Thompson, Maddy Gates, Jalen Nash, Shelley 

DeHart, and Tucker Johnson 

Item 1a:  Role Call / Sound Check 

Chair Kristie Ferguson declared a quorum. 

Item 1b:  Calls/Contacts to Planning Commission Members 

Commissioners were not contacted.   

Item 1c:  Approval of March 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Stewart made a motion to adopt the March 9, 2023 minutes as presented and 

Commissioner Harris seconded the motion.  The motion unanimously passed (5-0). 

Chair Ferguson explained the rules of procedure and time limitations. 

Chair Ferguson announced Item number 202200615, Dallas Bessemer City Highway, has been tabled 

and will not be heard tonight. 

Item 2: Public Hearing (Continued from March 9th) – 1818 W. Fifth Avenue (File #202300024) 

- WITHDRAWN

Subject hearing involves a request to rezone approximately 0.34 acres from RS-8 (Single-family

Residential) to RS-8 CD (Single-family Residential – Conditional District) for changes to an existing

structure, and development of one new infill single-family house. The subject property is located at

1818 W. Fifth Avenue, adjacent to Sherman Street. The property is owned by Statement Homes, LLC.

Chair Ferguson stated that file number 202300024, that was continued from the March 9 Gastonia 

Planning Commission meeting has been withdrawn, therefore, there will be no public hearing for this 

item.  

Item 3: Public Hearing – Shannon Bradley Road (File #202200544) 

Subject hearing involves a rezoning request for approximately 0.97 acres, and partial annexation (0.06 

acres) from I-2 (General Industrial) to C-3 (General Business). The subject property is located south 

of Bessemer City Road on Shannon Bradley Road and is owned by Norris D. Lamb Jr. 

The Gastonia City Council will be holding a Public Hearing on the rezoning and annexation of 0.06 

acres at the April 18, 2023 City Council meeting. 

Chair Ferguson opened the public hearing and recognized Jason Thompson, Planning Director for the 

purpose of staff presentation. Mr. Thompson stated the request is from I-2 to C-3 and that the subject 

property is located in an area of transition. The zoning map was presented and Mr. Thompson noted 

there is currently both industrial uses and C-3 zoning in the surrounding area. He stated staff is 

supportive of the request and he will be happy to answer any questions. 

Chair Ferguson asked the Commissioners if there were any questions for staff. With there being no 

further questions, Chair Ferguson recognized recognized Ty Toney, 1425 Merrimont Ave, Kings 

Mountain, NC. Mr. Toney stated that he now owns the property but the tax records still reflect Mr. 

Lambs name. He stated the request is from I-2 to C-3 and includes an annexation request. Chair 

Ferguson asked the Commissioners if they have any questions for Mr. Toney. With there being no 

further questions, Chair Ferguson asked the board for a motion. 

Commissioner Stewart made a motion to close the public hearing and recommend approval of the item 

as presented with the statement of consistency and reasonableness. Commissioner Wilson seconded 

the motion of recommendation for approval. The motion was approved (5-0). 

Item 4: Public Hearing – Lofts at Court Drive (File #202300050) 
Subject hearing involves a request to rezone approximately 12.64 acres from RS-8 (Single-family 

Residential, minimum 8,000 sq. ft. lots) to RMF CD (Residential Multi-family – Conditional District). 

The subject property is located on Court Drive, between Smyre Drive and Log Cabin Drive and is 

owned by Jerry and Alice Woods.  

  Page 1



Gastonia Planning Commission 

April 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Chair Ferguson opened the public hearing and recognized Jason Thompson, Planning Director for the 

purpose of staff presentation. 

 

Mr. Thompson stated the request was for 200 dwelling units in a multi-family development. Mr. 

Thompson noted, that the property was previously zoned for multi-family years ago and at some point 

got rezoned back to a single family district. Mr. Thompson stated there is precedent here for multi-

family zoning and project approval. He presented the zoning conditions, stating they are similar in 

nature to conditions the Commission has seen for other multi-family projects. Mr. Thompson noted 

the applicant, Wynnefield Properties, has had two previous multi-family rezonings approved within 

the past several months and that the proposed project is consistent with adopted plans. Mr. Thompson 

noted the 2025 Future Land Use Map and the Smyre Mill Village plan, that both recognized the 

appropriateness and need for higher density residential in this vicinity. He stated staff is recommending 

approval of the request and he is happy to answer any questions. 

 

Chair Ferguson asked the Commissioners if there were any questions for Mr. Thompson. 

Commissioner Wilson asked Chair Ferguson if there was anyone signed up to speak against this item. 

Chair Ferguson responded "Yes, several". Discussion ensued over who signed up to speak for or 

against the request. 

 

Chair Ferguson recognized Davis Ray, 5614 Riverdale Dr., Jamestown, North Carolina. Mr. Ray stated 

he is here on behalf of Wynnefield Properties, which is a North Carolina apartment developer. Mr. Ray 

noted the number of properties under Wynnefield's management and current projects. He stated they 

have worked with the City of Gastonia and have also held a public meeting for this project. Mr. Ray 

referenced the site plan and explained the development consists of a mix of one, two, and three 

bedroom apartments spread throughout seven buildings. He noted the list of neighborhood and/or 

lifestyle amenities and specifics of the proposal. Mr. Ray stated the site is within close proximity to a 

lot of different life amenities/services, such as retail, restaurants, banks, health care, and future jobs 

with Gatewat 85 which is a reason why they chose this particular site. He stated that at the 

neighborhood meeting, one of the attendees brought up traffic concerns, Mr. Ray reiterated that traffic  

would have to be addressed through an approval process from multiple governing agencies. Mr. Ray 

stated he is available to answer any questions.  

 

Chair Ferguson asked the board if they have any questions for the applicant. With there being no further 

questions, Chair Ferguson recognized Dan Keeps, 850 Log Cabin Dr., Gastonia, NC. Mr. Keeps noted 

his biggest concern is the applicant has two different entrances, one off Court Dr., and one off Log 

Cabin Dr. Mr. Keeps expressed concern with the entrance on Log Cabin Dr., stating it is a dead end. 

He asked if the Commissioners have been informed that one of the exits out of the community is a one 

lane road under a railroad trestle. He stated the addition of new vehicles traveling in and out of that 

exit, would pose a problem. Mr. Keeps asked if Wynnefield Properties has done a crime analysis with 

their similar projects in other cities. Mr. Keeps asked for further information on the type of housing 

being proposed.  

 

With there being no further questions from Mr. Keeps, Chair Ferguson recognized Lester and Virginia 

Hovis, 2999 Millstone Dr., Gastonia, NC. Mrs. Hovis noted her and her husband have lived in the 

neighborhood for five years and they like the area but have a few questions about the project. Mrs. 

Hovis stated she would like an explanation on what a Conditional District is. She expressed concern 

with the apartments being three stories and  the proposed density. Mrs. Hovis stated with three stories, 

the apartments would be looking down on their property and into their backyards. She stated her 

concerns with crime and traffic due to poor street quality and people driving over the speed limits. She 

expressed that she believes these issues will get worse. Mrs. Hovis asked how the utilities department 

is going to handle the extra needs and if that is going to be a strain. 

 

Mr. Hovis pointed out his property in reference to the proposed development. He stated one of his main 

concerns is the entrance on Court Drive adjacent to his property. He asked if the City of Gastonia is 

going to re-open the land strip beside his house, that was previously a closed ROW. Mr. Hovis 

expressed that this entrance location, if opened, would ruin his life. Mr. Hovis noted that Smyre Village 

is an old community with little to no rennovations, including narrow roads with no sidewalks or 

drainage. He shared his concern with the propsed density and the increase in vehicles on Court Dr., 

Log Cabin Dr. and Aberdeen, stating if there was an emergency, it would be dangerous to get out with 

limited exits and entrances. He stated the possibility of extending Aberdeen to provide relief. Lastly, 

Mr. Hovis shared concerns of crime and the quality of life for current residents.  

 

Commissioner Wilson asked Mr. Hovis if Log Cabin Dr. is currently a dead end on one side and an 

ingress/egress on the other. Mr. Hovis responded “Yes”, there is a dead end on one side of Log Cabin 

Dr.  

  Page 2



Gastonia Planning Commission 

April 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 

With there being no further questions for Mr. Hovis, Chair Ferguson recognized Jim Warner, at 772 

Log Cabin Dr, Gastonia, NC. Mr. Warner stated Mr. Keeps and Mr. Hovis have touched the concerns 

he wanted to speak about. Mr. Warner reiterated the concerns of traffic, with only two means of 

ingress/egress, no sidewalks, and Court Dr. being too narrow for two vehciles. He noted existing traffic 

in the area on NC-7, Court Dr. and Smyre Dr. is tight and will only get worse with 200 plus more 

individuals. Additionally, Mr. Warners added that the existing entrance under the railroad trestle is 

dangerous. Mr. Warners expressed his concerns over water pressure in the area and asked if that would 

get worse with increased population in the area. He added that there has been new single family 

development on Log Cabin Dr. and there are a lot of new families and children in the neighborhood. 

He noted he is worried that the addition of the apartments will alter the current make up of the 

community. 

 

With there being no questions, Chair Ferguson recognized Elton Walker, at 712 Smyre Dr., Gastonia, 

NC. Mr. Walker stated his concerns with the increase of traffic from this proposed development and 

others that have occurred in the area. He expressed concern that the new development will be used as 

a cut through for commercial vehciles from the industrial complex, adjacent to the neighborhood.  He 

stated that although the City put a sign up on Symre Dr. to resolve the issue, commercial vehicles do 

it anyway.  

 

With there being no questions, Chair Ferguson recognized Karen Walker, at 712 Symre Dr., Gastonia, 

NC. Ms. Walker noted she has lived in the area for 20 years. She stated she has grandchildren that live 

in the area, and with no sidewalks it is not safe to walk. Ms. Walker expressed concern with area being 

a cut through during busy commuting times for people trying to get to I-85. She also expressed concern 

with the additional vehciles that will be added. Ms. Walker expressed her concern with crime possibly 

increasing and homelessness problems. Lastly, she shared concerns with parked cars in the road and 

speeding.  

 

Chair Ferguson stated there are a list of concerns for staff and that the applicant is available for rebuttal, 

should they choose. Commissioner Harris asked Staff if a TIA was done prior to the meeting, or if 

there is any type of engineering traffic concerns in the area. Tucker Johnson, the Assistant City 

Engineer responded this project meets the threshold and will require a TIA, but staff hasn't required 

one yet at this point. He stated there was a time when the City required TIA’s prior to rezonings, but 

now they are independent of Planning Commission approval. Mr. Johnson stated if this passes, a TIA 

will be required.  

 

Chair Ferguson asked Mr. Johnson if he could break down what TIA stands for. Mr. Johnson stated 

TIA stands for Traffic Impact Analysis and that it will study the number of new trips coming and going 

from the apartment complex. He stated the TIA will model the road network and provide a list of 

improvements that the developer will have to make to accommodate the additional trips. Mr. Johnson 

presented the site on Google Maps to display the current road network. He noted the connection to 

Aberdeen and explained that truck traffic should not come through the neighborhood because it would 

be very difficult due to tight turns. Mr. Johnson noted the railroad trustle off NC-7 and the turn on 

Court Dr. would prevent truck traffic. Mr. Johnson stated that Aberdeen is going to eventually connect 

through to Lowell and provide direct access to the interstate. Mr. Johnson stated that is appears there 

are three means of egress but that they are substandard roads with no sidewalk or full width. He stated 

the Fire Marshall has looked at these developments off substandard roads and classified them as 

grandfathered in, meaing they don't require widening of the street to current codes. He noted that the 

TIA may find defincies in the neighborhood street network, and provide improvements. Lastly, Mr. 

Johnson addressed the question on water/sewer capacity, stating as far as service, it looks like there is 

adequate flow but it depends on elevation. He continued explaining the higher in elevation, the water 

pressure decreases. He stated he has not done a complete review on water and sewer but from his 

experience, the elevation explains the decreased water pressure but that there is adequate service.  

 

Commissioner Wilson asked Mr. Johnson to zoom in on the map presented and point out the 

ingress/egress locations and the dead end in question. Mr. Johnson explained that currently, the area 

on the site plan shown as Court Dr. is not entirely correct. He continued to explain that right of way 

may be dedicated and extended for Court Dr. in the future, but as of now, it is not a road. Discussion 

ensued over the ingress/egress and the dead end on Log Cabin Dr. Lastly, Mr. Johnson noted that fire 

code requires two egress points into the site which is why there is one on  Court Dr. and Log Cabin 

Dr.  

 

Commissioner Armstrong asked Mr. Johnson if there were any plans for Log Cabin Dr. to get extended. 

Mr. Johnson responded “No”, there's no plans and the only way it would get extended is if the TIA 

were to require it. Commissioner Wilson asked Mr. Johnson if the project to be built, where does he 

think majortiy of the ingress and egress would occur. Mr. Johnson responded he was not sure, but that 

the traffic engineers who do the TIA study would figure that out. He stated that in his opinion, the 

  Page 3



Gastonia Planning Commission 

April 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 

majority of the trips would go out of Court Dr. because it is a signalized intersection and gives direct 

access to I-85.  

  

Commissioner Ferguson asked Mr. Thompson to explain what a conditional district means. Mr. 

Thompson replied explaining the differences between a general and a conditional zoning request. He 

stated the biggest difference, is a general rezoning allows for all uses in a requested zoning district 

while a conditional rezoning, specifically allows for one, or limits uses. He also explained a conditional 

rezoning requires written conditions, a site plan, and renderings, which makes the site in question tied 

to the conditional zoning approval.  

 

Chair Ferguson noted that in terms of crime analysis and speed limit concerns, that would be an issue 

for the Police Department. Commissioner Armstong asked Mr. Thompson to adress the concerns about 

the apartment building height and asked if any buffering will be required. Mr. Thompson stated every 

zoning district has a maximum height restriction that cannot be exceeded. He noted the max height is 

measured at the top of last habitable space and not to the peak of the roof. Mr. Thompson stated the 

buffering is shown in the site plan and includes the required Type C buffer. He also explained various 

ways the buffer requirement can be met.   

 

Commissioner Harris asked the applicant if the size of the retention pond shown in the site plan is 

required. Mr. Ray responded the site plan is illustrative to show the location of the pond, but it is 

speculative at this point. He noted Wynnefield uses various different pond types which would be 

reviewed in later construction documents. Commissioner Harris asked Mr. Ray if he went with a two-

story concept instead of three, if the project would be financial feasibility. Mr. Ray responded that at 

this time, it would not. He stated further that the architect on the project could look into possibly having 

two-stories for the buildings adjacent to residential. Chair Ferguson noted a two-story building would 

still require a change in land use.  

 

Mr. Ray stated his company will work with city staff to address any issues, including the traffic 

concerns and the tight neighborhood streets. Mr. Ray stated Wynnefield has their own property 

management company and they will work closely with the Police Department in the area. In reference 

to the buffer, Mr. Ray noted this site has some mature vegetation currently which will be left 

undisturbed as much as possible. Mr. Ray idenitied areas on the plan where there would be replanting. 

He stated they try to avoid fencing, because it's not a natural component and instead would prefer 

adding additional landscaping and buffering.  

 

Commissioner Harris asked Mr. Ray if his company has on site property management. Mr. Ray 

responded that the property will have full time management, but they do not live on site. With there 

being no further questions, Chair Ferguson asked what are the wishes of the board. Discussion ensued 

over the options of the public hearing.  

 

Commissioner Wilson moved to close the public hearing. Commissioner Stewart seconded the motion. 

The motion to close the public hearing was approved (5-0). Commissioner Armstrong expressed his 

concerns with the location, road systems and the proposed density. Chair Ferguson asked 

Commissioner Armstrong if the requested zoning district of RMF was a concern. Commissioner 

Armstrong replied “Yes”, stating his main concern was the number of units and the density proposed.  

 

Commissioner Wilson motioned to approve the project as presented with the statement of consistency 

and reasonableness. Commissioner Stewart seconded the motion. With there being no further 

discussion, Chair Ferguson takes the vote. The motion to approve was passed (4-1).  

 

Chair Ferguson noted that if the Planning Commission decision is appealed, this item would then be 

heard by City Council on Tuesday May 16, 2023.  

 

Item 5: Public Hearing – Villages at Lynnhaven (File #202300051) 

Subject hearing involves a request to amend the conditional zoning district (File 202200570) for 

approximately 22.28 acres zoned RMF CD (Residential Multi-family – Conditional District). The 

subject property is located north of W. Hudson Boulevard, adjacent to Clyde Street. The property is  

owned by Usmani Holdings, LLC., and Jon and Peyton Apel. 

 

Chair Ferguson opened the public hearing and recognized Jason Thompson, Planning Director, for the 

purpose of staff presentation. Mr. Thompson noted this is another request for residential multi-family 

conditional zoning from the same applicant as the previous hearing. Mr. Thompson noted that the tax 

parcel in question is split north and south of W. Hudson Blvd. He explained that the southern portion 

was previously approved and that the current request is to expand onto the northern portion of the site. 

Mr. Thompson stated the applicant has previously gotten conditional zoning approval for RMF for the 

site to the west and that this is a continuation of a larger scale project. Mr. Thompson presented the 

  Page 4



Gastonia Planning Commission 

April 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 

proposed elevations and stated 8.1.10 in the code has design standards for multifamily. Mr. Thompson 

stated the 2025 Comprehensive Plan indicates office and commercial uses for this area, but staff feels 

multi-family zoning is compatible given the RMF projects adjacent. He states staff recommends 

approval. 

 

With there being no questions, Chair Ferguson recognized Davis Ray, 5614 Riverdale Dr., Jamestown, 

NC. Mr. Ray stated Wynnefield was able to attain additional land and add 72 more units. Mr. Ray 

stated this request is similar to the previous item and discussed some possible amenities. 

 

Commissioner Wilson asked Mr. Ray what the distance was from Clyde St. to the ingress/egress point. 

Mr. Ray responded it would be about 250 to 300 feet but that it is a right in/right out drive. Mr. Ray 

noted that access off Clyde St. was not proposed due to topography and existing wetlands.  

Commissioner Harris asked Mr. Ray if the elevations of the buildings are the same as the previous 

application. Mr. Ray responded "Yes".  

 

Chair Ferguson asked for the wishes of the board. Commissioner Stewart made a motion to approve 

the project as presented with the statement of consistency and reasonableness. Commissoners Wilson 

and Harris seconded the motion. The motion to approve was unanimously approved (5-0).  

 

 

Item 6: Public Hearing – 211 E. Eighth Avenue (File #202300062) 

Subject hearing involves a request to rezone approximately 0.26 acres from C-2 (Highway Business) 

to C-1 (Neighborhood Business). The subject property is located at 211 E. Eighth Avenue, east of S. 

Oakland Street and is owned by Helmsman Homes, LLC. 

 

Chair Ferguson opened the public hearing and recognized Jason Thompson, Planning Director, for the 

purpose of staff presentation. 

 

Mr. Thompson stated this rezoning request is from C-2 to C-1 which is the neighborhood commercial 

district. Mr. Thompson explained that this request is a down zoning, meaning it would be a more 

restrictive zoning district than what is currently there. Mr. Thompson stated the applicant is Helmsman 

Homes and the request would most likely be for the development of one single-family home. He 

explained that single family dwellings are not permitted in the C-2 zoning district but that the 

Commissioners have to consider all C-1 uses. He noted the Comprehensive Plan indicates commercial 

for the subject property and that staff is recommending approval. 

 

Chair Ferguson recognized Christine Newsome, 110 Stanton Lane Mooresville, North Carolina. Ms. 

Newsome stated the intent is to build a single family residence. She noted there are existing single 

family residences on both sides of the property.   

 

Chair Ferguson asked for the wishes of the board. Commissioner Armstrong made a motion to approve 

the project as presented with the statement of consistency and reasonableness. Commissioner Harris 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously (5-0). 

 

 

Item 7: Public Hearing – 1410 S. Marietta Street (File #202300063) 

Subject hearing involves a request to rezone approximately 0.11 acres from C-3 (General 

Business) to C-1 (Neighborhood Business). The subject property is located at 1410 S. Marietta 

Street, between E. Ruby Avenue and Davenport street and is own ed by Helmsman Homes, LLC. 

 
Chair Ferguson opened the public hearing and recognized Jason Thompson, Planning Director, for the 

purpose of staff presentation. 

 

Mr. Thompson stated this hearing is very similar to the previous public hearing, and includes the 

same applicant. He stated the request is to rezone from C-3 to C-1, neighborhood commercial. 

Mr. Thompson noted the Comprehensive Plan indicates residential uses for the subject property 

and staff is recommending approval.  

 

Chair Ferguson recognized Christine Newsome, at 110 Stanton Lane, Mooresville, North 

Carolina. Ms. Newsome stated this hearing is the same as the previous, with the purpose of 

building a single family home. 
 

Commissoner Harris asked Ms. Newsome what type of dwelling units Helmsman Homes develops and 

if they are affordable. Ms. Newsome responded that Helmsman develops spec homes for resale. She 

stated they are single-family dwellings either for sale or for rent, but they are entry level homes. 

Commissioner Stewart asked Ms. Newsome for other locations where Helmsman Homes has built in 

  Page 5



Gastonia Planning Commission 

April 6, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
Gastonia. Ms. Newsome responded they have one on S. South Street in the Historic District and two 

duplexes on Lewis Street. Ms. Newsome stated Helmsman Homes has also built in Gaston County.  

Chair Ferguson asked for the wishes of the board. Commissioner Harris made a motion to approve the 

project as presented with the statement of consistency and reasonableness. Commissioner Stewart 

seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved (5-0). 

Chair Ferguson requested a 8 minute recess. 

Item 8: Public Hearing – Unified Development Ordinance Amendments (File #202300103) 

Subject hearing involves a request to amend Section 7.1-1 Table of Uses, Section 7.3-1 Bulk and 

Use Chart, Section 7.6.5 Urban Standards Overlay District USO, Section 8.1.4 Urban Multi-

Family and Mixed-Use Residential, and Section 8.1.5 Dwelling, Two Family to the Unified 

Development Ordinance to 1) revise the permitted uses and dimensional requirements for all 

applicable residential uses previously amended by the Revised Residential Development District 

(Sections 8.1.11 and 8.1.17), 2) exempt temporary mobile classrooms on school properties from 

architectural requirements, and 3) add Urban Multi-Family and Mixed-Use Residential standards 

Chair Ferguson opened the public hearing and recognized Jason Thompson, Planning Director, for the 

purpose of staff presentation. 

Mr. Thompson stated the ordinance amendment includes three different requests. He stated the first 

includes proposing a new set of development standards for urban multi-family projects and mixed use 

projects, specifically targeting urban multi-family buildings and urban mixed use buildings. Mr. 

Thomspon displayed the Urban Core map and explained the geographic area that the new development 

standards would apply to. He explained that the Urban Core map is made up of existing zoning districts 

and boundaries, including areas such as the Historic District overlay and the Gateway District overlay. 

Mr. Thompson stated the second request is in regards to the Revised Residential Development District 

(RRDD).  He stated that the amendment would allow for RRDD to be used to provide flexibility in 

some areas in the City that target mid-level density. For the last request of the amendment Mr. 

Thompson stated staff has been working with Gaston County Schools to give them some flexibility 

with nonresidential building design standards and materials standards. He stated it's not uncommon for 

schools, particularly if they're going through an expansion or construction project  to use these portable 

mobile classrooms. Mr. Thompson stated this would exempt those buildings from design standards 

and materials standards, so long as they're temporary. He noted temporary, in this case, is two years or 

less for modular classroom. 

Commissioner Harris asked Mr. Thompson what would happen to these buildings after the two years. 

Mr. Thompson replied, that they would then become permanent structures and have to be fixed or 

removed.  

With there being no further discussion, Chair Ferguson asked for the wishes of the board. 

Commissioner Stewart made a motion for recommendation of approval with the statement of 

consistency and reasonableness. Commissioner Harris seconded the motion. The motion for 

recommendation of approval was unanimously passed (5-0). 

Item 10: Other Business 

Planning Director, Jason Thompson, stated that there were two approvals for annexation and 

assignment of zoning at the March 21, 2023 City Council meeting. He noted both were for industrial 

spec building projects, one was located on Apple Creek Parkway and the other was on Delta Drive. 

Chair Ferguson stated no representative is needed at the April 18th City Council meeting.  

Item 11: Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Stewart made a motion to adjourn the meeting and 

Commissioner Wilson seconded the motion.  Hearing none in opposition, the meeting adjourned at 

7:13 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jalen Nash, Planning Technician Kristie Ferguson, Chairwoman 

  Page 6



PUBLIC HEARING 

STAFF REPORT 

File # 202200615 

GPC Hearing Date:  June 8, 2023 

OWNER: 

APPLICANT: 

PROPOSED ZONING ACTION: 

LOCATION: 

TRACT SIZE:  

WARD: 

Kenneth R. & Pamela S. Avery, Charles E. Pasour 

Kyle diPretoro, JIK Holdings, LLC.  

Rezone from TMU & RLD (Gaston County) to PD-

RRDD (City of Gastonia) 

Located on Dallas Bessemer City HWY, north of the 

Gastonia Technology Park (PID# 171132, 171133, 

171134, 203611, 203613, 203614). 

Approximately 32.45 total acres

County to 4 (City) 

EVALUATION: 

Site Description and Background 

The subject property for this zoning request includes six (6) parcels currently zoned Gaston County 

TMU (Transitional Mixed Use) and RLD (Residential Low Density).  An annexation petition for 

the property has also been filed by the applicant, and both cases will be heard by City Council. 

The property is mostly vacant and rural consisting of open grassland with some wooded areas 

along the boundaries. There is one (1) single-family residence on the property with frontage on 

Dallas Bessemer City Highway and one (1) barn like structure. 

The applicant is requesting to rezone to PD-RRDD (Planned Development – Revised Residential 

Development District) to facilitate the development of a maximum of 191 single-family attached 

(townhome) units. The lots are proposed to be 20 feet minimum in width, providing an overall 

density of 5.86 dwelling units per acre. All units within the development will be rear-loaded off of 

alleys with frontage on a public street or common open space. There are two primary entrances off 

of Dallas-Bessemer City Highway where sidewalk and other street improvements will be required. 

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is required for the proposed project and the applicant will be 

responsible for providing all mitigations resulting from the TIA. All street cross sections will be 

reviewed during the Technical Review Committee and Preliminary Plat process. Several pockets 

of common open space, including a 0.37-acre park square, are dispersed throughout the 

development. The applicant has also proposed a walking trail connecting the development to 

the neighboring Dallas Park. Additional details of the improved open space will be required as 

part of preliminary plat and construction document review. The applicant has submitted 

two-story conceptual elevations for the project. 

Proposed zoning conditions: 

1. Development shall be generally consistent with the attached site plan including a

maximum of 191 attached single-family units (townhomes).

2. Construction shall be generally consistent with character and details as depicted in the

submitted elevations and architectural standards. Applicants shall provide elevation

details for front and rear elevations, and also side elevations facing public streets as part

of zoning review. Construction material shall consist of a combination of  brick, stone or

other masonry product, and any variation of fiber cementitious siding. Any alternatives

must be reviewed and approved by staff as part of zoning permit reviews.

3. Street cross-sections, ingress and egress points, intersections, internal crosswalks and

parking locations to be finalized during the subdivision review process. A Traffic Impact

Analysis will be required and must be submitted and approved as part of the Preliminary

Plat process.

  Page 7



 

4. Sidewalks shall be constructed on Dallas Bessemer City Highway along with other 

improvements required by Development Services, and in coordination with NCDOT.    

5. Location, width, material and maintenance of the pedestrian path shown connecting to 

Dallas Park shall be coordinated via agreement with Gaston County Parks and 

Recreation. Path may be privately maintained as part of common open space until such 

time Gaston County has the ability to provide a public connection. Trails are encouraged 

to be accessible and may need to be paved depending on Gaston County requirements. 

Trail easement shall be shown and recorded on the final plat of the applicant’s property, 

within common open space if it will be publicly maintained. 

6. Developer shall coordinate with proper local and state officials on the location, design, 

maintenance and operation of stormwater/water quality measures, and in particular the 

potential effect of run-off and water quality to the existing pond located within Dallas 

Park. 

7. In no instance shall the zoning conditions exempt a project from other development 

requirements. 

8. Where the notes or depictions on the site plan may conflict with these conditions, the 

conditions shall govern. 

 

Adjoining Properties and Land Use Trends 

Adjoining land use is mainly Gaston County residential with a portion of City of Gastonia 

industrial to the south. The property to the north and west is zoned Gaston County R-1 (Single-

family Limited) and consists of the Rudisill Park neighborhood. Directly east is Dallas Park zoned 

Gaston County TMU (Transitional Mixed Use). Further east is Gaston College in the Town of 

Dallas’ ETJ. To the south, is a mix of Gaston County RLD (Residential Low Density), consisting 

of mostly vacant parcels and City of Gastonia I-2 (General Industrial), consisting of the Gastonia 

Technology Park.  

 

Available Public Facilities 

Sewer is available on this site but water extension will be required. Additional water and sewer 

utility comments will be made upon review of the construction drawings. 
   

Consistency with Adopted Plans 

The Future Land Use Map in the 2025 Comprehensive Plan indicates industrial for the subject 

property. Although industrial is shown on the 2025 Comprehensive Plan, staff feels a residential 

land use is compatible with the surrounding area as there is primarily residential land uses to the 

north and west and the Dallas Park to the east. Additionally, this development provides a mix of 

residential uses in close proximity to the public park, the Gastonia Technology Park, and Gaston 

College.  

 

Conclusion 

The request includes a rezoning and annexation request from Gaston County TMU and RLD to 

City of Gastonia PD-RRDD (Revised Residential Development District) to facilitate the 

development of a maximum of 191 townhome units. The plan was designed in accordance with 

the RRDD (8.1.17) standards of the UDO. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Maddy Gates, MURP 

Planner 

 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to approve): Based on the 2025 

Comprehensive Plan as well as existing zoning and land uses, the Planning Commission considers 

an affirmative vote to be reasonable, compatible with the surrounding land use and zoning, and in 

the public’s interest. 

 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to deny): The Planning Commission 

considers an affirmative vote to not be reasonable and to not be in the public interest. 

  Page 8



Subject Property

Note: For a complete elaboration of zoning classifications,
see the Unified Development Ordinance or contact the 
City of Gastonia Planning Department at (704) 854-6652.

G A S T O N
C O U N T Y

G A S T O N
C O U N T Y

DALLAS

1 2 3
4

5
6 7 8 9 10 11

12
13

14

15

16

1718

19

20

I-2

R-12

R-1

TMU

RLD

C-1

LEISURE LN

QUAIL DR

DALLAS BESSEMER CITY HWY

BIG DONS

WAY

ST JOHN ST

BRA
NDYWINE

C IR

VET CT

WOODCHUCKDR

MAIN
TENANCE

WAY
HO

KE
DR

MEADOWBROOK CIR

DO
WN

EY
 LA

KE
 R

D

1 : 4,800
1 inch represents 400 feet
Plot Date: May 22, 2023I
0 200 400100

Feet
I, ___________________________, hereby certify that all mail notices, in the absence of
fraud, were mailed to all affected and adjoining property owners on ___________, 2023.

Application
PLMAC202200615

Planning Department

City Boundary
Dallas Town Limit
Streams
Lakes
Parcels
Buildings

Gaston County
Zoning

C-1
R-1
RLD
TMU

Applicant: JIK Holdings LLC - Kyle diPretoro

Owner: Kenneth R & Pamela S Avery;
 Charles Pasour

Planning Comm Hearing: June 8, 2023

Request: TMU & RLD (County) to
 PD RRDD (City)

Ward: County to 4

Total Tract Size: approx. 32.45 acres 

Parcel ID #: 171132, 171133, 171134,
      203611, 203613, 203614

Julia Baker-Granata
May 24

AP    Airport

PD IRD  Planned District Infill Res Devt
PD PRD  Planned District Planned Res Devt

PD PUD  Planned District Planned Unit Devt
PD TND  Planned Dist Traditional Neighborhood Devt

C-1   Light Commercial
C-2   Highway Commercial
C-3   General Commercial
CBD Central Business District
I-U   Urban Industrial
I-1   Light Industrial 

OLC Office/Light Commercial
O-M   Medical Office

RLD  Residential Low Density
RS-12  Residential 12000sqft lots
RS-8  Residential 8000sqft per lot
R-A   Rural Agricultural
RMF   Residential Multi-Family District
SP   State Park District
TMU  Transitional Mixed Use
UMU  Urban Mixed Use District

Legend

PD RRDD  Planned District Revised Res Devt District

I-2  General Industrial
I-2  General Industrial

O-1   Office

Dallas Zoning
Zone Type

R-12

1. HEDGEPETH BOBBY C &
HEDGEPETH BETTY J

2. HEDGEPATH BOBBY C
3. SURRATT ROBERT G &

SURRATT BETTY P
4. GREEM GAYLA M
5. MASON SALINA D
6. HASKIN DARRELL J &

HASKIN WANDA M
7. MILLER MARTHA ARROWOOD
8. MILLER GINA MARIE
9. FARRIS MARGARET YVONNE
10. HERNANDEZ NANCY ECHEGOYEN
11. MOODY JOYCE A
12. FALLS RANDY M
13. FERGUSON CAROLE LEE
14. MULLEN JERRY RAY JR &

MULLEN ANDREW TODD
15. GASTON COUNTY PARKS AND REC
16. GASTON COUNTY
17. PASOUR NANCY C
18. PASOUR NANCY C
19  PASOUR NANCY C
20. OWENS CORNING COMPOSITE MTRLS

C/O OWENS CORNING TAX DEPT

  Page 9



   Page 10



   Page 11



Neighborhood Meeting Minutes 
To:

From:

CC:

Date & Time:

Location: 

Re:

Ms. Maddy Gates (City of Gastonia Planning Department) 

Eagle Engineering, Inc. 

File/7773 

March 22, 2023 | 6:00pm � 7:00pm (In Person) 

April 3, 2023 |  6:00pm � 7:00pm (Virtual) 

Dallas Park, Dallas  

Dallas Bessemer Townhomes 

Summary: 

Attendees from the Development Team included Mr. Brice Dimitruk (Eagle Engineering, 
Inc.), and Mr. Kyle diPretoro (DP Development, Representing JIK Holdings, �Applicant�).   

1. Mr. diPretoro introduced the Development Team and provided a general description
of the site location and planned development of the project. Mr. diPretoro outlined
the zoning process within the City of Gastonia and the steps that the project will take
including technical review, public information meeting, planning board, public hearing
and City Council decision. The purpose of this meeting is to provide the attendees with
an overview of the project and to receive comments from the public.

2. Mr. diPretoro noted the project will likely be heard at the April Planning Board meeting
and the May City Council meeting for a public hearing and decision, but these dates
may be pushed back to the May Planning Board Meeting and June City Council
meeting.  Notification for the City Council meeting date will be provided by the City.
Mr. diPretoro also outlined the total timeline of the project including anticipated
engineering, permitting, and groundbreaking.

Discussion Points from the Public Information Meeting regarding the Dallas 
Bessemer Townhomes Annexation and Rezoning Petition:

3. A few of the attendees asked how the project might affect the traffic on
Dallas Bessemer City Hwy?
Mr. diPretoro explained that the City of Gastonia requires a traffic impact analysis
to be completed, and the City will provide an independent, third-party engineering firm
to perform the analysis. Upon receipt of the recommendations, the developer, JIK
Holdings, will agree to the proposed offsite improvements and will be responsible for all
costs associated with design, permitting, and  construction.

4. What is the final product that will be on the site and what will be the sale price?
Will these be for sale or for rent homes?
It was explained to the attendees that this project would be comprised of single-family
attached dwellings and that the expectation is they would be for sale. The anticipated
price point will be “starting from the $200s” but will likely be over $300,000 per home
depending on the market.

   Page 12



Dallas Bessemer Townhomes  April 5, 2023 

5. Questions regarding the screening/buffer between the project and the
neighboring property?
The rendered site plan was used as a reference to depict the landscape buffer area
that will be planned to maintain the existing vegetation as much as possible. If there
are any areas that are disturbed, then they will be replanted back.

6. What amenities will be provided for the subdivision, and will there be enough
parking for the project?
There will be a community gathering area central to the project as
well as natural trails throughout the project. The goal is to have the trails connect into
the Dallas Park so the community can easily access the neighboring park. Mr.
diPretoro also explained that excess guest parking has been provided on-street
throughout the community in addition to the garages and driveways provided for the
residents.

Attendees at the meeting were encouraged to sign the Attendance Sheet.  A copy of the 
attendance list is attached.

   Page 13



   Page 14



, 203614

   Page 15



   Page 16



PUBLIC HEARING 
STAFF REPORT 

File # 202300052 

GPC Hearing Date:  June 8, 2023 

OWNER: 

APPLICANT(S): 

PROPOSED ZONING ACTION: 

LOCATION: 

TRACT SIZE:  

WARD: 

Martha P. Smith & Dean A. Putnam 

Julie Lowe, Crowder’s Creek Commons LLC 
John H. Carmichael, Robinson Bradshaw 
Richard Petersheim, Land Design  

Rezone from C-3, I-2 and I-2 CUP to PD-RRDD 

2915, 2927, 2941, 3001 West Franklin Boulevard 
(PID# 138076, 138077, 138078, 138079, 138080, 
138089, 138090, 138099, & 138101). 

Approximately 16.31 total acres 

6 

EVALUATION: 

Site Description and Background 

The subject property for this zoning request includes a total of nine (9) tax parcels currently zoned a 
combination of Commercial (C-3) and Industrial (I-2), and contains an auto salvage and storage 
business. This proposed development will adjoin the larger Crowder’s Creek development, recently 
approved as a Traditional Neighborhood Development (TND), which will include commercial and 
multi-family at the front closest to Franklin Boulevard.  A creek borders the property along the eastern 
side and current access to the site comes either from Franklin Boulevard or Patterson Circle.  The site 
slopes moderately from west to east.  

The applicant is requesting to rezone to PD-RRDD (Planned Development-Revised 
Residential Development District) to construct a maximum of 140 single-family detached and/or 
attached units. There will be three (3) primary public streets providing access, with a main drive 
coming from Franklin Boulevard, a secondary street (collector) which will connect from the 
approved Crowder’s Creek development, and a third public street providing future cross 
connection to the east/southeast. Total density will be about 8.6 dwelling units per acre. 

In accordance with the RRDD Design Standards per sections 8.1.11 and 8.1.17 of the UDO, all units 
will be rear loaded, and the majority will have architectural fronts along one of the three public streets, 
with the exception of four lots that will front on common open space near the front of the site. The 
development will have sidewalk connections and street trees throughout, as well as open space and 
tree save areas to meet code. An open space plan will be presented with construction drawings for the 
development. A future greenway corridor is identified along the eastern (creek) boundary in 
accordance with the City’s adopted Greenway Master Plan, the purpose of which was to provide a 
future connection to the north to the T. Jeffers Park and Recreation Center. However, with the 
development approval of Crowder’s Creek subdivision to the west, this connection will be achieved 
utilizing the proposed street network to the signal crossing at Shannon Bradley Road, and therefore the 
applicants will accommodate a bicycle and pedestrian connection from this development to Crowder’s 
Creek utilizing planned public streets. All street cross sections will be reviewed by Planning and 
Development Services during the TRC and Preliminary Plat process. The applicant has submitted 
conceptual elevations for the project as well with a variety of options.  

Proposed zoning conditions: 

1. Development shall be generally consistent with the attached site plan, and “Development
Standards” provided by the applicants dated April 14, 2023, including a maximum of 140
single-family units, attached or detached.

2. Construction shall be generally consistent with character and details as depicted in the
submitted elevations and architectural standards. Applicants shall provide elevation details

   Page 17



for front and rear elevations, and also side elevations for units adjacent to public streets as 
part of zoning review. Construction material shall consist of predominant brick, stone or 
other masonry product, and any combination/variation of fiber cementitious siding. Any 
alternatives must be reviewed and approved by staff as part of zoning permit reviews. 

3. Street cross-sections, ingress and egress points, intersections and parking locations to be
finalized during the subdivision review process. All sub-250’ radius curves, skewed and off-
set intersections shall be reviewed and approved by the Engineering and Fire Departments
and must meet AASHTO standards.

4. The applicants shall provide an open space plan as part of preliminary plat and construction
document review.  Open space shall conform to section 8.1.11 of the Unified Development
Ordinance. Trails, if provided, must be ADA accessible. Storm water control structures
designed as part of the open space shall be designed as best management practice solutions
that are a feature of the open space to which they are within. For wet ponds, they shall be
designed to include appropriate fountains or filtration devices with permanent depth of at
least 3-feet. Any pond that is a feature of the open space shall also provide an ADA accessible
trail around said pond.

5. The City of Gastonia adopted Greenway Master Plan references a future greenway that
crosses the applicant’s property. In lieu of developing a standard greenway trail along the
creek, the applicants will provide a multi-use connection from the development via the
internal street network to the proposed greenway as part of the original Crowder’s Creek
development located immediately to the west of the applicant’s property. This connection
must accommodate pedestrians and bicyclists, and will be reviewed and approved by City
staff during the TRC and Preliminary Plat process.

6. In no instance shall the zoning conditions exempt a project from other development
requirements.

7. Where the notes or depictions on the site plan may conflict with these conditions, the
conditions shall govern.

Adjoining Properties and Land Use Trends 

Property directly to the east also features a mixture of auto service and salvage uses zoned C-3 or I-2. 
Property to the southeast is currently vacant or wooded.  The Fawnbrook subdivision, zoned RS-8 is 
just beyond the vacant land to the east/southeast, and the approved subdivisions of Crowder’s Creek, 
Parklin, Westfall, and the future Linwood Springs Regional Park are all to the south of this site.    

Available Public Facilities 

Water and sewer is available at the property. Additional utility comments will be made upon 
preliminary plat and construction document review.  

Consistency with Adopted Plans 

The Future Land Use Map in the 2025 Comprehensive Plan indicates a mix of commercial, industrial 
and residential for the subject property. 

Conclusion 

The applicant has requested that the property be rezoned to PD-RRDD (Revised Residential 
Development District). The plan was designed in accordance with the standards of sections 8.1.11 
and 8.1.17 of the Unified Development Ordinance adopted by City Council in October 2021. 
Staff recommends approval of the request. 

_________________________ 

Jason T. Pauling, AICP 
Assistant Planning Director 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to approve): Based on the 2025 Comprehensive 
Plan as well as existing zoning and surrounding residential zoning and land uses, the Planning Commission 
considers an affirmative vote to be reasonable and is compatible with the surrounding land use and zoning 
and is in the public’s interest. 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to deny): The Planning Commission considers an 
affirmative vote to not be reasonable and to not be in the public interest. 

   Page 18



   Page 19



   Page 20



   Page 21



   Page 22



   Page 23



   Page 24



   Page 25



   Page 26



   Page 27



   Page 28



   Page 29



   Page 30



   Page 31



   Page 32



PUBLIC HEARING 

STAFF REPORT 

File # 202300122 

GPC Hearing Date:  June 8, 2023 

OWNER: 

APPLICANT: 

PROPOSED ZONING ACTION: 

LOCATION: 

TRACT SIZE:  

WARD: 

Gaston County Family YMCA 

Jamie Rolewicz, Legacy Pointe Properties, LLC 

Amend existing C-2 CD (File 7321)

2470 E Hudson Blvd., (PID# 115541 - Corner 

of Armstrong Park Road and E Hudson Boulevard). 

Approximately 3.49 acres 

3 

EVALUATION: 

Site Description and Background 

The subject site for this rezoning request consists of one parcel, approximately 3.29 acres located 

at the intersection of E. Hudson Boulevard and Armstrong Park Road.   The parcel is currently 

zoned C-2 CD (Highway Commercial – Conditional District.) This property was rezoned to C-2 

CD (case number 7321) in 2011 which authorized the development of the site for commercial use.  

The types of commercial uses authorized within this conditional district were restricted to 

“Restaurant with Drive-Through,” and neighborhood commercial type uses permitted within a C-

1 zoning classification.   

The applicant is requesting a C-2 CD amendment in order to allow the development of a self-

storage facility. The proposed project will consist of one, three-story facility approximately 

115,0000 square feet in size.  Development of the site includes a multi-use path located adjacent 

to Armstrong Park Road, architectural enhancements to the building, and the development of a 

public plaza at the intersection as a community focal point. Access into the development is 

proposed from E. Hudson Boulevard and Armstrong Park Road.   

Submitted elevations include articulation on the west façade, architectural wall projections on the 

south, east, and north facades, and a mix of materials that include E.I.F.S with stucco finish, vinyl 

cedar shake, and curtain wall windows. 

Proposed zoning conditions: 

1. Development shall be generally consistent with the attached site plan including a maximum of 
a 115,000 square foot self-storage facility. Any proposed change in use will require amendment 
of the conditional zoning district.

2. Applicant(s) shall coordinate with the City and NCDOT on the primary driveway locations at

E. Hudson Blvd. and Armstrong Park Rd.

3. Applicant(s) shall construct sidewalk and/or multi-use trail along the entire frontage of the 
property.  A public easement will be required for any portion of sidewalk, and/or multi-use 
trail built outside of the public right-of-way on private property.

4. Construction shall be generally consistent with character and details as depicted in the 
submitted elevations and architectural standards. Applicants shall continue to provide 
elevation details for all sides throughout site plan and zoning reviews and permits.

5. In no instance shall the zoning conditions exempt a project from other development 
requirements.

6. Where the notes or depictions on the site plan may conflict with these conditions, the 
conditions shall govern.

   Page 33



 

 

Adjoining Properties and Land Use Trends 

To the west, across the street on E. Hudson, is a Gaston County Public School facility and a mix 

of single-family and multi-family uses. To the north exist primarily multi-family residential uses.  

To the south, across E. Hudson Blvd. and along Gaston Day School Road, exist a mix of single-

family residential uses and multi-family residential uses. 

 

Available Public Facilities 

Water and sewer is available at the property.  

   

Consistency with Adopted Plans 

The Future Land Use Map in the 2025 Comprehensive Plan identifies future use in this area as 

residential.  The trajectory of future development and use was changed for this area with the city’s 

approval of the C-2-CD zoning on the subject property in 2011.  Therefore, it is staff’s opinion 

that the proposed amendment is consistent with the city’s vision for the area. 

 

 

Conclusion 

The applicant has requested a C-2 CD zoning amendment, to accommodate a self-storage facility 

development. Based on the submitted site plan, detailed elevations, and proposed conditions, staff 

recommends approval of the request. 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Shelley DeHart, AICP 

Senior Planner 

 

 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to approve): Based on the 2025 

Comprehensive Plan, the city approved rezoning action on the subject property in 2011, as well as 

existing zoning and surrounding zoning and land uses, the Planning Commission considers an 

affirmative vote for commercial use consisting of a self-storage facility to be reasonable, 

compatible, and in the public’s interest. 

 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to deny): The Planning Commission 

considers an affirmative vote to not be reasonable and to not be in the public interest. 

   Page 34



Subject Property

Note: For a complete elaboration of zoning classifications,
see the Unified Development Ordinance or contact the 
City of Gastonia Planning Department at (704) 854-6652.

1
2

3

4
5

13

12
11

10 9 8 7
6

O-1

C-1

RS-8 CD
9397

C-2 CD
7321

RMF CD
9371

RMF CD
5282

RS-12

RMF

RS-8

RS-8 CUP
4808

PD PRD
34-04

E HUDSON BLVD E

E HUDSON BLVD W

BENTBRANCH ST

BRADFORD ST

BALLANTY
NE

DR

THICKET DR

TRUNDLE DR

BRADFORD ST

CA
MB

ER
 DR

CA
T

TA
IL DR

FIRST ST

SABRAST

A R
MS

TR
O N

G
P A

R K
RD

SALUDA DR

SEASONS DR

BRADFORD
HEIGHTS

RD

WINTER LN

TERRA DR

IR
VI

N 
CT

SILV
ERB

ERR
Y ST

DE
NA

DA
 C

T

WILLOW
WIND DR

CORDOBAST

TORRENCE AVE

SABRA ST

GA
ST

ON
 D

AY
 SC

HO
OL

 R
D

BROWN ST

SHUDAAVE

BR
AD

FO
RD

 ST

CLUB HOU
SE

DR

MAGNA
CT

BLACK OAK DR

DARREN DR

CASTER CT

BALLANTYNE DR

GOODM
AN

CI
R

1 : 3,600
1 inch represents 300 feet
Plot Date: May 22, 2023I
0 150 30075

Feet
I, ___________________________, hereby certify that all mail notices, in the absence of
fraud, were mailed to all affected and adjoining property owners on ___________, 2023.

Application
PLMAC202300122

Planning Department

Roads
Floodway
100yr Flood Zone
500yr Flood Zone
Streams
Parcels
Buildings

Applicant: Legacy Pointe Properties, LLC

Owner: Gaston County Family YMCA

Planning Comm Hearing: June 8, 2023

Request: Amend File 7321 zoned C-2 CD

Ward: 3

Total Tract Size: approx. 3.49 acres 

Parcel ID #: 115541

Julia Baker-Granata
May 24

AP    Airport

PD IRD  Planned District Infill Res Devt
PD PRD  Planned District Planned Res Devt

PD PUD  Planned District Planned Unit Devt
PD TND  Planned Dist Traditional Neighborhood Devt

C-1   Light Commercial
C-2   Highway Commercial
C-3   General Commercial
CBD Central Business District
I-U   Urban Industrial
I-1   Light Industrial 

OLC Office/Light Commercial
O-M   Medical Office

RLD  Residential Low Density
RS-12  Residential 12000sqft lots
RS-8  Residential 8000sqft per lot
R-A   Rural Agricultural
RMF   Residential Multi-Family District
SP   State Park District
TMU  Transitional Mixed Use
UMU  Urban Mixed Use District

Legend

PD RRDD  Planned District Revised Res Devt District

I-2  General Industrial
I-2  General Industrial

O-1   Office

1. SOUTHWOOD BALLANTYNE GASTONIA LLC
2. SOUTHWOOD SEASONS AT BENNETTS CREEK
3. GASTON COUNTY BD OF EDUCATION
4. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
5. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
6. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
7. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
8. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
9. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
10. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
11. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
12. HOFFMAN INVESTORS LLC
13. EHC HOMES LP

   Page 35



25' TYPE C BUFFER

SOUTHWOOD BALLANTYNE GASTONIA, LLC
165 SOUTH YORK STREET, GASTONIA, NC 28052

PARCEL #208242
USE: APARTMENTS

30' REAR SETBACK

15' FRONT SETBACK

15
' F

RO
N

T 
SE

TB
A

C
K

ACK
AC

X
KIW

223010

X-BASE-223010.DWG

REVISIONS:

PROJECT NUMBER:

DRAWN BY:4/3/2023DATE:

SHEET OF

LI
FE

 S
TO

RA
G

E 
- G

A
ST

O
N

IA
PI

N
 #

/ 
PA

RC
EL

 ID
: 1

15
54

1
24

70
 E

 H
UD

SO
N

 B
LV

D
 G

A
ST

O
N

IA
, N

C
 2

80
54

X-BASE-223010.DWG - PLOT: Kennedy - MON. 5-22-2023   9:47 AM

1. CONTRACTOR IS FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING APPROPRIATE
PARTIES AND ASSURING THAT EXISTING UTILITIES ARE LOCATED PRIOR TO
BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

2. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PLACING BARRICADES USING
FLAGMEN, ETC., AS NECESSARY TO INSURE SAFETY TO THE PUBLIC.

3. ALL PAVEMENT CUTS, CONCRETE OR ASPHALT, ARE TO  BE REPLACED
ACCORDING TO STANDARDS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.

4. SHORING WILL BE ACCORDING TO OSHA TRENCHING STANDARDS PART
1926 SUBPART P, OR AS AMENDED.

BMP

W

N

E

S
NORTH ARROW

GRAPHIC SCALE 1"=30 FT.

0 15 30 60

SITE DATA TABLE
PARCEL ID 115541

LOCATION 2470 E HUDSON BLVD GASTONIA, NC 28054

JURISDICTION GASTONIA

OWNER GASTON COUNTY FAMILY YMCA

2221 ROBINWOOD RD. GASTONIA, NC 28054

DEVELOPER LEGACY POINTE PROPERTIES

ZONING C-2 CD

TOTAL PARCEL AREA 3.298

PROPOSED USE INDOOR STORAGE

PROPOSED BUILDING PRODUCT 3-STORY INDOOR STORAGE

MIN. FRONT / STREET SETBACK 30' OR 15' IF NO PARKING OR DRIVE AISLES BETWEEN
BUILDING AND R/W

MIN. SIDE SETBACK 10'

MIN. REAR SETBACK 20' OR 30' IF ABUTTING RESIDENTIAL

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 50'

PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT ≈ 37'

BUILDING AREA ≈39,600 SF PER FLOOR (≈117,200 SF TOTAL)

MAXIMUM PARKING ALLOWED 40 SPACES

MINIMUM TREE SAVE REQUIRED 15% - 0.49 AC - 21,549 SF

TREE SAVE PROVDIED (MITIGATED TREE SAVE
@ 36 TREES PER ACRE)

PARKING SHOWN 9 SPACES

FEMA MAP NUMBER 3710356400J

FEMA MAP DATE 9/28/2007

SOIL TYPES CeB2 (100%)

TRASH COLLECTION 1 DUMPSTER

ALL ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STANDARDS SHALL APPLY

SITE LIGHTING BY OTHERS & SHALL COMPLY WITH LAND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

PROJECT TO BE DEVELOPED IN ONE (1) PHASE

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: N.T.S.

SITE

RE
ZO

N
IN

G
 S

ITE
 P

LA
N

0101

LEGEND

PROJECT BOUNDARY
PROPOSED BUILDING
CURB AND GUTTER
BUILDING SETBACK
IRRIGATION CONDUIT
EXISTING SURVEY

BUILDING HATCH

TREE SAVE (RE-PLANT)

SIDEWALK
HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE
PAVING

R1-1

STOP STOP SIGN W/
WHITE STOP BAR

PARKING ROW
COUNT

HANDICAPPED
PARKING SYMBOL

COMPACT
CAR SPACEXX C

NCDOT 6" REINFORCED
CONCRETE PAVING

≈117,200 SF INDOOR STORAGE BUILDING
≈ 39,600 SF PER FLOOR X 3 FLOORS

24'

PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)

SETBACK LINE (TYP.)

PARKING REQUIREMENT SUMMARY
MAXIMUM VEHICLE PARKING

1 SPACE PER 600 SF OF OFFICE & 1 SPACE PER 3,000 SF OF ADDITIONAL INDOOR SPACE

600 SF OF OFFICE & 116,600 SF OF ADDITIONAL INDOOR SPACE PROVIDED

MAXIMUM PARKING ALLOWED = 40 SPACES
PARKING SHOWN = 9 SPACES

REQUIRED BICYCLE PARKING SPACES = 0

TREE SAVE = 0.49 AC
TO BE REPLANTED AT 36 TREES PER ACRE

0.49 x 36 = 18 TREES

EXISTING PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALK AND SIGNALS.

EXISTING SIDEWALK TO BE REMOVED

10' MULTI-USE PATH WITH PLANTER
BETWEEN BACK OF CURB AND PATH.
DETAILS OF PATH TO BE WORKED OUT
IN CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

EASEMENT OUTSIDE OF R/W TO BE DEDICATED TO THE
CITY FOR MULTI-USE PATH MAINTENANCE. A MINIMUM
OF 20' EASEMENT SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY IF
THE PATH IS TO REMAIN COMPLETELY OUTSIDE OF
EXISTING R/W. DETAILS TO BE WORKED OUT IN
CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

5' SIDWALK ALONG HUDSON BLVD

CONNECT SIDEWALK TO
APARTMENT SIDEWALK

PUBLIC PLAZA AREA.
DESIGN TO BE DETAILED
WITHIN CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

19'

9'

LARGE MATURING STREET TREES
SPACED AT 40'

SMALL MATURING STREET TREES
DUE TO OVERHEAD POWER

SPACED AT 30'

PUBLIC WATER TO BE EXTENDED
TO SERVE DEVELOPMENT. TO BE DETAILED
WITHIN CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

EXISTING SIDEWALK TO BE REMOVED

   Page 36



   Page 37



   Page 38



   Page 39



MEMORANDUM 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

June 8, 2023 

Michael Peoples 

City Manager 

Jason Thompson, AICP 

Planning Director 

Subject: Subject hearing involves a request to amend Chapter 10 – Off-Street Parking and 

Loading, and other various sections of the Unified Development Ordinance to 

1) revise the parking maximums within certain zones and building type, 2) allow 

the Administrator to evaluate and approve increases within particular zones, 3) 

establish Electric Vehicle Charging Station regulations for certain uses, 4) 

modify section numbers and cross-references within this chapter and the UDO,  and 5) 

clarify, adjust, and/or remove criteria associated with parking standards within 

the city. (File #202300141) 

______________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND 

Planning staff, working with Metrocology, continues to review and make necessary modifications 

to the UDO with the goal of clarifying and improving development standards within City. Part of 

the process of ordinance implementation is to re-evaluate and adjust these development 

regulations, where needed, to ensure the right fit for the city. 

Staff has identified Chapter 10 - Off Street Parking and Loading as an area of the UDO that needs 

refinement and enhancement.  The amendment includes provisions: 

 Allowing flexibility to exceed the maximum parking ratios within higher density zoning

districts and building type, in order to meet market trends, thus avoiding multiple text

amendments when trends shift (Section 10.12).

 Establishes electric vehicle criteria for certain uses that will either require installation of

facilities, or actions promoting EV facility readiness for certain use types (Section 10.8).

 Removes Section 10.10 related to private car sharing programs.

 Modifies Drive-Through Vehicle Queuing regulations removing use limitations (Section

10.9).

 Added provisions excluding types of spaces from the maximum parking space calculations

(Section 10.5).

 Modified section numbers and cross-references within the chapter to accommodate

additions and deletions.

This amendment also proposes to modify the following sections of the UDO to reflect changes to 

Chapter 10 section numbers as follows: 

 Table 7.1-1 Table of Uses – Parking Regulation (“Pkg. Reg.”) column for all uses will be

amended to reflect the parking chapter in-lieu of a specific section to avoid having to amend

the table each time a section number is changed. This will be required through-out the

entire table.

   Page 40



Use Category  

Defined  Sup.  
Reg.  

Pkg. Reg.  
(Chapter) 

Abattoir  

ABC Store  Y  10.11 

Adult Establishments  Y  8.2.1 10.11 

 Amend Section 7.6.5(C) changing a section number reference to a chapter reference.
C. Location of Off-Street Loading Areas.

 Refer to Section 10.14  Chapter 10 -Off-Street Loading Areas 

 Amend Section 7.12 (D)(1) changing the section number reference to a chapter reference.

D. Land Use Considerations. All uses listed in Section 7.1-1 for the UMU are retained, with
the following exceptions.

1. Restaurant, with Drive Thru. The use shall be subject to the off-street staging space
requirements of Section 10.6 Chapter 10. Any Restaurant, with Drive Thru shall
also include an outdoor dining area and on-site bike racks. The DRC, as part of its
review of a proposed Restaurant, with Drive Thru, may require certain additional
site improvements and architectural standards be met in addition to ordinance
minimums. These include, but are not limited to: alternate paving treatments for
pedestrian and vehicular traffic areas, roof extensions to cover drive-thru service
windows, and menu board dimensional and material specifications including
lighting. Primary building colors shall not include high intensity colors (such as
yellow, red, orange, etc.), metallic colors, or fluorescent colors. The use of such
colors shall be permitted on business identification signs, provided all other sign
requirements herein are adhered to. Finally, any children's play area provided by
the restaurant may not be located in the front or side yard of any lot. As with all
other new and renovated sites and buildings within the UMU, these uses shall be
subject to review by the DRC and must meet all site and design standards
established for the UMU.

Amend Section 8.3.1 (C) changing section number reference to Chapter number reference. 

8.3.1 –INDUSTRIAL HEAVY EQUIPMENT BULK STORAGE YARD & COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 
AND TRUCK STORAGE  

A. All storage areas shall be screened from both a public street (including I-85) and any
adjoining residentially zoned lot with a Type D buffer yard.

B. All commercial vehicle and truck driving, parking and maneuvering areas shall be
surface with asphalt or bituminous concrete.

C. A lighting plan shall be provided showing all outdoor lighting fixtures, type, and
wattage.  Glare shall be minimized through the use of directional fixtures and be in
compliance with Section 9.13 Lighting and Reflectivity and Section 10.15 Chapter 10
Lighting for Parking Lot and Vehicle Loading areas.

D. One shade (canopy)tree for every four thousand (4.000) square feet of impervious
area shall be installed throughout the site.  Preservation of existing trees are eligible
to count towards this requirement.

E. Existing trees of a caliper greater than eight (8) inches may be used to satisfy the tree
coverage requirement of section D above based on the location of the tree(s), the
caliper, and the species

 Amend Section 9.20 changing section number reference to chapter number reference.

SECTION 9.20 - USES WITH OUTDOOR SPEAKERS  
All uses with outdoor speakers shall locate the speaker and associated menu board, 
drive through window, and stacking lane, if applicable, fifty (50) or more feet from the 
edge of a lot located in a Residential zoning district. Staging spaces may be required per 
Section 10.6 Chapter 10.  

   Page 41



 Amend Section 11.4 (A) changing section number references to chapter number reference. 

SECTION 11.4 - STREET TREES  
A.  Purpose  

In order to absorb carbon dioxide and provide oxygen necessary for human life; purify 
air through transpiration; provide cooling through shade; reduce the impact of wind; 
retard the rate of water runoff; reduce glare and noise; to conserve property values; and 
to contribute to the natural beauty and aesthetics of the community, street trees, as 
herein provided, are required. Additional landscape planting strip standards associated 
with parking decks are found in Sections 10.9.1, 10.9.2 and 10.9.3 Chapter 10. The 
required street trees may be planted within said landscaped area or elsewhere on the 
lot as herein called for in Subsection D. Greenstrips may also be required as provided for 
in Section 9.18.2.  

 

CONCLUSION 

 

If approved, these revisions would modify and enhance the parking standards within the city.  Staff 

recommends approval as presented. 

 

Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency (motion to approve): 

This ordinance is consistent with the Gastonia 2025 Comprehensive Plan and any applicable duly adopted 

small areas plans, and is reasonable and in the public interest.   

   Page 42



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GASTONIA 

WHEREAS, the City of Gastonia deems it necessary to update the Unified Development 
Ordinance in order to provide additional clarification as needed; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Gastonia deems it necessary to and in the public interest to have 
clear, concise and consistent standards for the management of growth and development throughout 
the city; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GASTONIA as follows: 

Section 1. Chapter 10 shall be rescinded in its entirety and replaced as provided in Exhibit A 
attached herein. 

Section 2. Table 7.1-1 Table of Uses shall be amended in its entirety within the Parking Regulation 
Column (Pkg.Reg) as provided in Exhibit B attached herein. 

Use Category 

Defined  Sup.  
Reg.  

Pkg. Reg. 
(Chapter) 

Abattoir 

ABC Store Y 10.11 

Adult Establishments Y  8.2.1 10.11 

Section 3. Amend Section 7.6.5(C) and 7.12(D)(1) as follows: 

7.6.5 - C.  Location of Off-Street Loading Areas. 

 Refer to Section 10.4 Chapter 10 -Off-Street Loading Areas 

7.12.5 D.  Land Use Considerations. All uses listed in Section 7.1-1 for the UMU are 
retained, with the following exceptions. 

1. Restaurant, with Drive Thru. The use shall be subject to the off-street staging space
requirements of Section 10.6 Chapter 10. Any Restaurant, with Drive Thru shall
also include an outdoor dining area and on-site bike racks. The DRC, as part of its
review of a proposed Restaurant, with Drive Thru, may require certain additional
site improvements and architectural standards be met in addition to ordinance
minimums. These include, but are not limited to: alternate paving treatments for
pedestrian and vehicular traffic areas, roof extensions to cover drive-thru service
windows, and menu board dimensional and material specifications including
lighting. Primary building colors shall not include high intensity colors (such as
yellow, red, orange, etc.), metallic colors, or fluorescent colors. The use of such
colors shall be permitted on business identification signs, provided all other sign
requirements herein are adhered to. Finally, any children's play area provided by
the restaurant may not be located in the front or side yard of any lot. As with all
other new and renovated sites and buildings within the UMU, these uses shall be
subject to review by the DRC and must meet all site and design standards
established for the UMU.

Section 4. Section 8.3.1 (C) shall be amended as follows: 

8.3.1 C -  A lighting plan shall be provided showing all outdoor lighting fixtures, type, 
and wattage.  Glare shall be minimized through the use of directional fixtures and be in 
compliance with Section 9.13 Lighting and Reflectivity and Section 10.15 Chapter 10 
Lighting for Parking Lot and Vehicle Loading areas. 

   Page 43



Section 5. Section 9.20 shall be amended as follows: 

SECTION 9.20 - USES WITH OUTDOOR SPEAKERS 

All uses with outdoor speakers shall locate the speaker and associated menu board, 
drive through window, and stacking lane, if applicable, fifty (50) or more feet from the 
edge of a lot located in a Residential zoning district. Staging spaces may be required per 
Section 10.6 Chapter 10.  

Section 6. Section 11.4 (A) shall be amended as follows: 

SECTION 11.4 - STREET TREES 

A. Purpose

In order to absorb carbon dioxide and provide oxygen necessary for human life; purify 
air through transpiration; provide cooling through shade; reduce the impact of wind; 
retard the rate of water runoff; reduce glare and noise; to conserve property values; and 
to contribute to the natural beauty and aesthetics of the community, street trees, as 
herein provided, are required. Additional landscape planting strip standards associated 
with parking decks are found in Sections 10.9.1, 10.9.2 and 10.9.3 Chapter 10. The 
required street trees may be planted within said landscaped area or elsewhere on the 
lot as herein called for in Subsection D. Greenstrips may also be required as provided for 
in Section 9.18.2.  

Section 7. Should any provision of this ordinance be declared invalid or unconstitutional 
by any court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect the 
validity of the ordinance as a whole or any part thereof which is not specifically 
declared to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 8. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 
adoption. 

Section 9. This ordinance is consistent with the purpose and intent of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, Gastonia 2025 Comprehensive Plan and any applicable 
duly adopted small area plans, and is reasonable and in the public interest because 
it promotes the health, safety, and welfare. 

This the day of , 2023. 

Walker E. Reid III, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Suzanne Gibbs, City Clerk 

Ord23-787.docx 

   Page 44



   Page 45



   Page 46



   Page 47



   Page 48



   Page 49



   Page 50



   Page 51



   Page 52



   Page 53



   Page 54



   Page 55



   Page 56



   Page 57



   Page 58



   Page 59



   Page 60



   Page 61



   Page 62



   Page 63



   Page 64



   Page 65



EXH
IBIT B

   Page 66



   Page 67



   Page 68



   Page 69



   Page 70



   Page 71



   Page 72



   Page 73



   Page 74



   Page 75



   Page 76



   Page 77



   Page 78



   Page 79



   Page 80



   Page 81



MEMORANDUM 

Date: June 8, 2023 

To: Michael Peoples 

City Manager 

From: Jason Thompson, AICP 

Planning Director 

Subject: Subject hearing involves a request to amend Section 12.3 Prohibited Signs and Section 12.14 

Sign Flexibility Options in Chapter 12-Signs, of the Unified Development Ordinance to allow 

for roof signs as a flexibility option within the UMU, zoning district (File #202300147). 

______________________________________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND 

Roof signs have often been referred to as a historic sign type contributing to the architectural and historic 

character of a city and its skyline.  The city has a few remaining non-conforming roof signs and has received 

new requests for this historic sign type within our urbanized district.    

Staff has reviewed the sign ordinance and recommends the following text amendment for Chapter 12 to 

allow for sign flexibility within the Urban Mixed Use District (UMU), if approved through the sign 

flexibility process. 

 Amend Section 12.3 (K) – PROHIBITED SIGNS – to allow roof signs pursuant to Section 12.14 –

SIGN FLEXIBILITY OPTIONS, within the UMU zoning district.

 Amend Section 12.14 SIGN FLEXIBILITY OPTIONS.  This existing section of the ordinance

allows for sign flexibility as an incentive for enhanced architectural design.  It clearly outlines a

purpose, process, review criteria, and approval procedure. This amendment proposes to add

flexibility in a sign type (roof sign), in addition to the existing flexibility in sign area.  The sections

proposed for amendment are:

SECTION 12.14 - SIGN FLEXIBILITY OPTIONS 

A. This Section contains provisions for sign bonus options, allowing greater sign area, or sign type, when
specifications are met. The provisions of this Section apply to all zoning districts unless noted.

1. The aggregate area of all wall signs per premises may be increased based on the distance the principle
building is set back from the required front setback line. Said increase shall be in accordance with the
following table:

Principal Building Distance Setback From the 
Required Front Setback  

Allowed Aggregate Wall Sign Area 
Increase (Percent)  

0—49 feet 0 

50—99 feet 25 

100—149 feet 50 

150—199 feet 75 

200—249 feet 100 

250—299 feet 125 

300—349 feet 150 

350—399 feet 175 

400 feet or more 200 

   Page 82



B. Where a freestanding sign is not used and/or permitted, a projecting sign may be substituted for part or
all of the allowable wall signage per premises. A projecting sign shall not project more than four (4) feet
from a building. In no instance shall a projecting sign extend into a street right-of-way, except in the CBD
(where such extensions may be permitted subject to approval of the Subdivision Administrator).

C. Where a freestanding sign is not used and/or permitted in the Urban Mixed Use District (UMU), a roof sign
may be substituted pursuant to this section.

CD. Design review alternative.

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Subsection is to provide functional flexibility, encourage variety, and
create an incentive to relate wall signs, or unique sign type, to basic principles of good building design.
This Subsection promotes the integration of signage and building facades and rewards design
innovation and creativity. The goal is to create a better product, than would typically be provided
through strict adherence to the signage requirements, by offering a voluntary procedure for building
design review. This option encourages wall signage that is context sensitive to the building on which
it is placed.

In order to provide such signage flexibility and incentives for well-designed buildings, provisions are
hereby made to allow a review committee to approve an increase in wall sign square footage, or
roof sign in the UMU zoning district, where external building features create an attractive wall face,
reducing the negative impacts of larger signs. Such determination shall be made through a voluntary
building design review submittal. Said flexibility shall be available for structures within commercial
and industrial zoning districts, or as specifically identified within this section. Applicants are required
to have a consultation with Planning Department staff before submitting a proposal for increased
wall sign size.

2. Process. All submittals shall be reviewed and approved by a three- to seven-person the city’s Design
Review Committee (DRC) consisting of the zoning administrator, the planning director or their
designee, and such additional staff as the City Manager may designate. The committee shall meet not
more than ten (10) working days after submittal or re-submittal of a sign proposal. Actions of this
committee may be as follows: approval of the sign as submitted, or rejection of the proposal with
recommendations for design changes that would elicit favorable consideration upon re-submittal.
Such actions shall also govern re-submittals. Appeals of any decision made by the committee shall be
made to the Planning Commission Board of Adjustment at the first meeting following a 30-day period
after the committee decision. Such appeal shall be advertised and conducted as a public hearing. The
Planning Commission may grant the request for a larger sign only after having made all four (4)
findings set forth in the approval procedure subsection. The decision of the Planning Commission is
appealable only to the superior court by writ of certiorari. The appeal shall be heard and processed
pursuant to Section 5.13.

3. Submittal. Applicants must submit, at a minimum, a detailed scale drawing of all building facade(s)
including proposed building materials, colors to be used, and applicable dimensions (roof overhand
and/or roof slope, wall height, etc.). Submittal shall also include sign dimensions, proposed placement
on the building, copy, color, sign illumination plans, and all materials that are to be used in sign
construction. In addition, committee members may require the submission of samples of materials
proposed, if deemed necessary for proper review and consideration of the application.

4. Review Criteria. When reviewing applicable building facades in association with wall sign size, or sign
type, the following concepts are encouraged by the committee to create context sensitive signage:

a. Building entrances should be articulated (recessed or protruding) from the main facade line
sufficient to provide emphasis and variation to the building wall. Applicable building facades
should have adequate openings (window and/or doors) to break up long expanses of building
wall.

b. Building facades should not include dominating architectural elements that are identified or
associated with the particular franchise or chain and repetitive from community to community.
Prototype franchise buildings are discouraged, whereas, creative design is encouraged.

c. The primary external building materials should include one or more of the following: brick, brick
veneer, ornamental split-faced concrete block or similar ornamental concrete masonry unit
(CMU), stucco (synthetic or natural), stone or simulated stone/marble. Other materials such as
vinyl, aluminum, and ornamental metals may be used as trim only.

d. The use of subdued or earth tone colors and shades, such as beige, tan, rust, brown, and green,
are encouraged in building facade materials. Bright colors typically used in franchise architecture
are discouraged.

e. All signs within a particular project shall be presented within a master sign program and should
be coordinated in terms of design features and materials.

   Page 83



f. Roof signs shall comply with the following:

i. Roof signs are only permitted for nonresidential buildings or multi-family dwelling
structure of 30-feet or more in height in the UMU zoning district.

ii. Maximum sign height is 15-feet above roof, including the support structure. The width
of a roof sign is limited to 65% of the roof level width or 40 feet, whichever is less.

iii. Roof sign shall be designed with channel letters/icons and overall area shall be a
minimum of 40% transparent.

iv. A maximum of one roof sign is permitted per building on a flat roof only.

v. A minimum of a five-foot setback is required from all building edges.

vi. The roof structure and roof sign shall be engineered to ensure safe and secure
installation.

vii. Roof signs may only be internally illuminated.

5. Approval Procedure. The committee, or Planning Commission Board of Adjustment upon appeal, may
approve an increase in sign square footage, or sign type, for a particular structure only upon making
the following findings in the affirmative:

a. The building architecture and materials coordinated with the proposed wall or roof sign to create
a context sensitive design solution consistent with the general purpose and intent of this
subsection;

b. The proposal will provide needed sign visibility to motorists and pedestrians visiting the facility;

c. The proposal will enhance the aesthetics of the development and surrounding area and will not
substantially injure the value of adjoining properties (as measured against the nonuse of the
design review alternative);

d. The proposal will not be detrimental to the public's health, safety, or welfare.

e. Increases in sign area or sign type allowed by the design review alternative may be combined
with those allowed in paragraph A but may not be combined with those allowed by the planned
development flexibility option.

CONCLUSION 

If approved, these revisions would provide the opportunity for quality roof signs pursuant to Section 

12.14 within the UMU zoning districts. Staff recommends approval as presented. 

Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency (motion to approve): 

This ordinance is consistent with the Gastonia 2025 Comprehensive Plan and any applicable duly adopted 

small areas plans, and is reasonable and in the public interest.   

   Page 84



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GASTONIA 

WHEREAS, the City of Gastonia deems it necessary to update the Unified Development 

Ordinance in order to provide additional clarification as needed; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Gastonia deems it necessary to and in the public interest to have 

clear, concise and consistent standards for the management of growth and development throughout 

the city; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GASTONIA as follows: 

Section 1.   Section 12.3(K) of the UDO be amended as follows: 

K. Roof signs (except as approved pursuant to Section 12.14 within the UMU zoning district.)

Section 2.       Section 12.14 of the UDO shall be amended as follow: 

SECTION 12.14 - SIGN FLEXIBILITY OPTIONS 

A. This Section contains provisions for sign bonus options, allowing greater sign area, or sign type,
when specifications are met. The provisions of this Section apply to all zoning districts unless
noted.

1. The aggregate area of all wall signs per premises may be increased based on the distance
the principle building is set back from the required front setback line. Said increase shall be
in accordance with the following table:

Principal Building Distance Setback From the Required 

Front Setback  

Allowed Aggregate Wall Sign Area Increase 

(Percent)  

0—49 feet 0 

50—99 feet 25 

100—149 feet 50 

150—199 feet 75 

200—249 feet 100 

250—299 feet 125 

300—349 feet 150 

350—399 feet 175 

400 feet or more 200 

B. Where a freestanding sign is not used and/or permitted, a projecting sign may be substituted for
part or all of the allowable wall signage per premises. A projecting sign shall not project more
than four (4) feet from a building. In no instance shall a projecting sign extend into a street right-
of-way, except in the CBD (where such extensions may be permitted subject to approval of the
Subdivision Administrator).

C. Where a freestanding sign is not used and/or permitted in the Urban Mixed Use District (UMU),
a roof sign may be substituted pursuant to this section.

CD. Design review alternative.

   Page 85



1. Purpose. The purpose of this Subsection is to provide functional flexibility, encourage
variety, and create an incentive to relate wall signs, or unique sign type, to basic principles
of good building design. This Subsection promotes the integration of signage and building
facades and rewards design innovation and creativity. The goal is to create a better product,
than would typically be provided through strict adherence to the signage requirements, by
offering a voluntary procedure for building design review. This option encourages wall
signage that is context sensitive to the building on which it is placed.

In order to provide such signage flexibility and incentives for well-designed buildings,
provisions are hereby made to allow a review committee to approve an increase in wall
sign square footage, or roof sign in the UMU zoning district, where external building
features create an attractive wall face, reducing the negative impacts of larger signs. Such
determination shall be made through a voluntary building design review submittal. Said
flexibility shall be available for structures within commercial and industrial zoning districts,
or as specifically identified within this section. Applicants are required to have a
consultation with Planning Department staff before submitting a proposal for increased
wall sign size.

2. Process. All submittals shall be reviewed and approved by a three- to seven-person the city’s
Design Review Committee (DRC) consisting of the zoning administrator, the planning
director or their designee, and such additional staff as the City Manager may designate. The
committee shall meet not more than ten (10) working days after submittal or re-submittal
of a sign proposal. Actions of this committee may be as follows: approval of the sign as
submitted, or rejection of the proposal with recommendations for design changes that
would elicit favorable consideration upon re-submittal. Such actions shall also govern re-
submittals. Appeals of any decision made by the committee shall be made to the Planning
Commission Board of Adjustment at the first meeting following a 30-day period after the
committee decision. Such appeal shall be advertised and conducted as a public hearing. The
Planning Commission may grant the request for a larger sign only after having made all four
(4) findings set forth in the approval procedure subsection. The decision of the Planning
Commission is appealable only to the superior court by writ of certiorari. The appeal shall
be heard and processed pursuant to Section 5.13.

3. Submittal. Applicants must submit, at a minimum, a detailed scale drawing of all building
facade(s) including proposed building materials, colors to be used, and applicable
dimensions (roof overhand and/or roof slope, wall height, etc.). Submittal shall also include
sign dimensions, proposed placement on the building, copy, color, sign illumination plans,
and all materials that are to be used in sign construction. In addition, committee members
may require the submission of samples of materials proposed, if deemed necessary for
proper review and consideration of the application.

4. Review Criteria. When reviewing applicable building facades in association with wall sign
size, or sign type, the following concepts are encouraged by the committee to create context
sensitive signage:

a. Building entrances should be articulated (recessed or protruding) from the main facade
line sufficient to provide emphasis and variation to the building wall. Applicable building
facades should have adequate openings (window and/or doors) to break up long
expanses of building wall.

b. Building facades should not include dominating architectural elements that are
identified or associated with the particular franchise or chain and repetitive from
community to community. Prototype franchise buildings are discouraged, whereas,
creative design is encouraged.

c. The primary external building materials should include one or more of the following:
brick, brick veneer, ornamental split-faced concrete block or similar ornamental
concrete masonry unit (CMU), stucco (synthetic or natural), stone or simulated
stone/marble. Other materials such as vinyl, aluminum, and ornamental metals may be
used as trim only.

d. The use of subdued or earth tone colors and shades, such as beige, tan, rust, brown, and
green, are encouraged in building facade materials. Bright colors typically used in
franchise architecture are discouraged.

e. All signs within a particular project shall be presented within a master sign program and
should be coordinated in terms of design features and materials.

   Page 86



f. Roof signs shall comply with the following:

i. Roof signs are only permitted for nonresidential buildings or multi-family
dwelling structure of 30-feet or more in height in the UMU zoning district.

ii. Maximum sign height is 15-feet above roof, including the support structure.
The width of a roof sign is limited to 65% of the roof level width or 40 feet,
whichever is less.

iii. Roof sign shall be designed with channel letters/icons and overall area shall
be a minimum of 40% transparent.

iv. A maximum of one roof sign is permitted per building on a flat roof only.

v. A minimum of a five-foot setback is required from all building edges.

vi. The roof structure and roof sign shall be engineered to ensure safe and secure
installation.

vii. Roof signs may only be internally illuminated.

5. Approval Procedure. The committee, or Planning Commission Board of Adjustment upon
appeal, may approve an increase in sign square footage, or sign type, for a particular
structure only upon making the following findings in the affirmative:

a. The building architecture and materials coordinated with the proposed wall or roof sign
to create a context sensitive design solution consistent with the general purpose and
intent of this subsection;

b. The proposal will provide needed sign visibility to motorists and pedestrians visiting the
facility;

c. The proposal will enhance the aesthetics of the development and surrounding area and
will not substantially injure the value of adjoining properties (as measured against the
nonuse of the design review alternative);

d. The proposal will not be detrimental to the public's health, safety, or welfare.

e. Increases in sign area or sign type allowed by the design review alternative may be
combined with those allowed in paragraph A but may not be combined with those
allowed by the planned development flexibility option.

Section 3. Should any provision of this ordinance be declared invalid or unconstitutional 

by any court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect the 

validity of the ordinance as a whole or any part thereof which is not specifically 

declared to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

adoption. 

Section 5. This ordinance is consistent with the purpose and intent of the Unified 

Development Ordinance, Gastonia 2025 Comprehensive Plan and any 

applicable duly adopted small area plans, and is reasonable and in the public 

interest because it promotes the health, safety, and welfare. 

This the day of , 2023. 

Walker E. Reid III, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Suzanne Gibbs, City Clerk 

Ord23-786.docx

   Page 87



MEMORANDUM 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Subject: 

June 20, 2023 

Michael Peoples 
City Manager  

Kim Wallis, AICP 
Senior Planner  

Jason Thompson, AICP 
Planning Director  

An ordinance amending the Civil Penalty Section of the Historic District 
Overlay in the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Proposed Amendments 

The Historic District Overlay in the UDO stipulates that property owners wishing to do work to 
the exterior structure or the lot on properties in local historic districts need to obtain a 
certificate of appropriateness (COA) from the Historic District Commission (HDC) before 
work is initiated. As investment in these neighborhoods has increased over the last few 
years there has been an increase in work done without first receiving a COA from the HDC. 
Much of the work needing these certificates do not necessitate a building permit thus it is 
difficult to police this activity. This has presented hardship to the HDC who must decide to 
either approve work that is not appropriate to the district or require owners to remove it. The 
Commission and staff have worked hard these last several years on educating new and existing 
property owners of the regulations that come with owning property in a local historic district, 
however as these cases have continued, the HDC feel monetary consequences are necessary to 
curtail this activity. 

Conclusion 

This amendment to the UDO would help the Historic District Commission uphold the 
purpose of the establishment of Gastonia’s local historic districts which is to protect and 
conserve the heritage and history of the neighborhoods and the City of Gastonia, fostering 
civic beauty, enhancing property values within the district and Gastonia as a whole, and 
contributing to the improvement of the general health and welfare of Gastonia and its 
residents. Staff recommends approval as presented.

Statement of Reasonableness and Consistency (motion to approve): 

This ordinance is consistent with the Gastonia 2025 Comprehensive Plan, and is reasonable 
and in the public interest because it helps support the goal of protecting and preserving the 
local historic districts in Gastonia. 

   Page 88



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 7.6.2 – HD HISTORIC DISTRICT 

OVERLAY OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

OF THE CITY OF GASTONIA 

WHEREAS, the City of Gastonia deems it to be in the best interests of the health, 

safety and welfare of the citizens of Gastonia to have clear, concise, consistent and enforceable 

standards for the management of growth and development throughout the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Gastonia deems it necessary to update the Unified 

Development Ordinance in order to provide additional enforcement provisions for failure to 

obtain the required certificate of appropriateness for modifications to the exterior of properties 

located within the Historic District Overlay; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GASTONIA as follows: 

Section 1. Section 7.6.2-HD Historic district overlay sub-section EE is hereby amended as follows: 

EE. Civil Penalty. 

1. Unless otherwise provided in this subsection, violation of any of the regulations contained 
herein shall be subject to the penalties and remedies set forth in Chapter 1514.

2. In the event that a tree is removed without authorization in an HD district, the 
Administrator shall have the authority to bypass the “Notice of Violation” provisions of 
this Ordinance and immediately issue a civil penalty in the amount of two hundred dollars 
($200.00).  In the event that a tree is removed without authorization in an HD district, 
such tree shall be replaced by another tree of a size and species to be determined by the 
zoning administrator or city arborist no smaller than two (2) inches in diameter measured 
four (4) inches from grade.  Such tree shall be replaced within thirty (30) days of receiving 

an order to do so from the Administrator.  Failure to comply with such order shall subject 

the violator to additional civil penalties in the amount of two hundred dollars per day for 

the continuing violation.  In addition, the violator shall be subject to any of the

penalties and remedies set forth in Chapter 1514.

3. No civil penalty shall be levied for violations of the provisions of Section 7.6.2GG unless 
and until the Planning Director or his designee delivers a written notice by personal 
service or by registered mail or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the owner of 
the property or the person responsible for each violation indicating the nature of the 
violation and ordering corrective action or other by service using other means allowable 
pursuant to G.S. rule 1-A1, rule 4. The notice shall also set forth the time period when 
corrective measures must be completed. The notice shall state that failure to correct the 
violation within the specified time period, which shall not be less than ninety (90) days, 
will result in the assessment of civil penalties and other enforcement action. If, after the 
allotted time period has expired and after the hearing of an appeal by the Board of 
Adjustment, if any was requested, corrective action has not been completed, a civil 
penalty shall be assessed in the amount of two hundred dollars ($200.00) per day for the 
continuing violation.

4. In the event any exterior portion of a building, structure, lot or site is altered within an HD
Historic District Overlay without an approved certificate of appropriateness and in 
violation of this Section, the Administrator shall have the authority to bypass the “Notice 
of Violation” provisions of this Ordinance and immediately issue a civil penalty in the 
amount of two hundred dollars ($200.00).  In addition, the Administrator shall order the 
owner of the property and the person responsible for each violation to apply for and 
obtain a certificate of appropriateness for any and all alterations made to the property.  If 
the owner and/or the person responsible for each violation fails to comply with such order, 

the terms of any certificate of appropriateness obtained thereafter; or, if a certificate of 

appropriateness is denied and the owner and/or person responsible for each violation fails 

to remove the unapproved alteration and restore the property the violator shall be subject 

to additional civil penalties in the amount of two hundred dollars per day for the 

continuing violation.  In addition, the violator shall be subject to any of the penalties and 

remedies set forth in Chapter 14.

Section 2. All ordinances or portions of ordinances in conflict herein are hereby repealed. 

   Page 89



Section 3. 

Section 4. 

Section 5. 

Should any provision of this ordinance be declared invalid or unconstitutional 

by any court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect the 

validity of the ordinance as a whole or any part thereof which is not specifically 

declared to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from its effective date. 

This ordinance is consistent with the Gastonia 2025 Comprehensive Plan and 

any applicable duly adopted small area plans, and is reasonable and in the 

public interest because it promotes the health, safety, and welfare and brings the 

City’s ordinance into compliance with federal law. 

This the day of , 2023. 

Walker E. Reid III, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Suzanne Gibbs, City Clerk 

Ord23-788.docx

   Page 90


	GPC Agenda 08_JUNE 23 DRAFT
	+FINAL FOR PC
	202200615 Staff Report Final
	FINAL PLAN 8.5x14
	Packet Documents FINAL
	PLMAC202200615
	PLMAC202200615_aerial

	Combined Parking Ordinance_Chapter 10.pdf
	May_PB_Chapter 10_Draft Ordinance
	ExhibitA_Ordinance Parking Amendment

	Crowders Commons Rezoning FULL PACKET.pdf
	File # 202300052
	GPC Hearing Date:  June 8, 2023

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



